5:00 pm

5:15 pm

5:25 pm

5:45 pm
5:50 pm
5:55 pm
6:00 pm
6:20 pm
6:25 pm
6:35 pm

6:45 pm

MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA
FULLER MEADOW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2026
5:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded
1. Business '

Warrant: 2615, FP79

Minutes: October 16, 2025 ES; January 5, 2026; January 6, 2026; January 6, 2026 ES
Town Administrator Updates and Reports

Middleton Municipal Campus Update - Brian LaRoche, PCA360

2.  Department Head Update: Scott Fitzpatrick, Building Commissioner

3. Department Budget Presentations for FY 27: Conservation, Inspectional Services, Select Board/Town

Administration, Town Counsel, Misc. Departments under TA office
4. Refer Comprehensive Zoning to Planning Board
5. Review Building Permit Fees
6. Review draft items for Annual Town Meeting Warrant
7. South Essex Sewerage District Prop 2.5 discussion
8. Close Almira J. Richardson Scholarship Account Fund
9. Comp and Class — wider work for FY 26, 27, and 28
10. Annual licensing follow up

11. Move update

Upcoming Meetings February 7 at 8:30 am Budget Saturday

February 3  Regular Select Board Meeting
February 17  Regular Select Board Meeting

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
Via Zoom
January 5, 2026 at 3 PM

Present: Jeff Garber; Kosta Prentakis; Debbie Carbone; Rick Kassiotis
Others Attending: Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director and recording secretary.
Absent: Brian Cresta, Chair

At 3:04 pm the Board called to order in open session.

The Board reviewed the additional updated from the Assistant Town Administrator. Several business were
ready for sign off. There was a motion by Prentakis and a second by Garber to approve the liquor licenses for
Blue Fin, Crossroads, and Summit’s Place, which were approved unanimously by roll call vote.

The Board then reviewed the businesses still missing items for their liquor licenses and determined that those
business should attend the January 6™ meeting for renewal. ATA Bresnahan was charged with continuing to
communicate with the businesses and to provide an updated printed list at the meeting on January 6™. It was
discussed that outstanding common victualler licenses will be asked to attend the January 20" meeting.

At 3:20 pm the Board voted unanimously by roll call vote to adjourn.
Respectfully submitted by,

Jackie Bresnahan
Jackie Bresnahan, Recording Secretary

Debbie (_Zarbone, Select Board Cletk

Middleton Select Board
DRAFT 1.05.2026



MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
January 6, 2026 at 5pm

With a quorum present the meeting B. Cresta called the meeting to order at 5:12pm and announced this meeting was
being recorded. Select Board present: Brian Cresta, Chair; Debbie Carbone, Clerk; Rick Kassiotis; Kosta Prentakis.
Not present: Jeff Garber. Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator; Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town

Administrator; others as noted.
The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

1. Business
*  Warrant: 2613/December 24, 2025: Payroll - $ 930,000; Bills Payable - $ 2,696,000: FP77 - $ 67,710
*  Warrant: 2614/January 8, 2026: Payroll - $ 887,000; Bills Payable - $ 870,000: FP78 - $ 20,000
The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board ’s approval.
Town Administrator provided a brief overview of the warrant.
Vote: The Board voted unanimously to approve Warrants 2613/2614 & FP77/78.

Minutes: December 2, 2025 ES; December 16, 2025; December 30, 2025
Vote: The Board voted unanimously to approve the minutes as presented.

Town Administrator Updates & Reports- J. Sultzbach
*  MassDOT is hosting a Design Public Hearing for the Maple St Bridge replacement to be held over zoom tomorrow

(Wednesday, January 7™, The link has been shared to the town website and social media.

+ Departmental budget meetings are underway. As a reminder, Budget Saturday will be held on Saturday, February
7', and will feature some of our departments with larger budgets. Smaller departments will be featured in
upcoming Select Board meetings starting on January 20%.

+  Collective Bargaining is ongoing with most of our unions. Agreements need to be made in advance of the upcoming
“Budget Saturday” in order to be funded for FY27. Any agreements after that point will need to be funded
retroactively.

* ZBA completed site plan modification process for the commercial project at 49 S Main Street. Decision was filed
with the Town Clerk on December 29" and has been posted to the website.

+  December 23" 408 was filed for 35 Village Road with the Initial hearing on Jan 22", Materials are on the website,
Materials are on the project page of the ZBA website.

+ Long time town employee Paul Ajootian is retiring from the DPW following over 27 years of service to the town. We
thank Paul, as well as his family, for all of their years of collective service and commitment to the community.

* Members of our team met with South Essex Sewerage District today to discuss their upcoming budgetary
challenges. They will be requesting to be exempt from Proposition 2.5%, a move that has been granted to other
sewerage districts and would require legislative action. This will be featured on your January 20" Agenda.

+ ATA Bresnahan has been representing Middleton in the Masco Superintendent Search. The process is ongoing.

+  Well wishes to our departing COA Director lillian Smith, who is moving on to Salem NH next week. Her sendoff at
the COA was well attended today. Thank you to Jillian for the wonderful culture she cultivated over the past several
years.

). Sultzbach thanked the Board and people of Middleton for their support with his recent parental leave.

Middleton Select Board
January 6, 2026 page: 1/3



* Middleton Municipal Complex Update —J. Breshahan
» WT Rich Change Order 13 - $ 27,958
» Ockers Amendment - $ 24,206.57
» Valley Amendment - $ 154,258.71
J. Bresnahan reported the Building Committee voted to approve the change order/amendments being presented and
summarized those changes/amendments. B. LaRoche will provide a detailed update at the Board’s January 20 meeting.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, Board voted unanimously to approve the change order
and two amendments as presented.

The agenda was taken out of order with consensus.*
2. Middleton Turkey Trot 2025 Presentation- Courtney Lee & Michelle Deonis
The Turkey Trot is an annual event held the past 8 years to support local non-profit organizations and local Youth Sport
teams; this year’s even raised $30k, which was $4k more than the previous year. There were 895 registered runners
and 60 sponsors/volunteers.
Representatives were present to receive the check on behalf of their organization: Middleton Food Pantry ($5k),
Council on Aging ($5k), Veterans ($5k), Neighbors in Need ($2.5k), Friends of the Flint Library ($5k).
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted unanimously to accept the contribution
to the Council on Aging and the Veterans with thanks.

3. Department Head Update: Jillian Smith, Council on Aging (COA)

Chair Cresta announced J. Smith was taking a new COA position in Salem N.H. On behalf of the Board he wished her the
best and thanked her for fabulous service to Middleton. The Board members each spoke on her success and
appreciation for her service and dedication. J. Smith also took the opportunity to express her gratefuiness for the
gratitude that has been shared, and spoke fondly of the community, and especially the seniors, and the opportunity to
serve the residents of Middleton. The Chair read and presented a recognition to acknowledge the passion , dedication
and hard work of J. Smith over the past six years.

The Board took a brief recess.

4. Annual License Renewals — J. Bresnahan
Chair Cresta noted multiple annual licenses remain outstanding; certified mail notification will be sent out tomorrow to
those businesses not completing their application by the December 31 deadline. A license renewal not done by the end
of the year results in a license suspension and penalties. He stressed the reasons for the renewal process for the life
and safety inspections that are done and pointed out the ease of the online, electronic or paper options. The Board
noted concern on the amount of staff time the process takes, especially after the deadline, and further discussed
considering ways to improve the process, minimize staff time, and shift the additional cost of delays onto the licensees.
J. Bresnahan will follow up with Town Counsel regarding the Town’s options; this will be on a future agenda.
+  Rizzo’s Middleton- Liquor & Common Victualler’s Licenses
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, Board voted unanimously to approve the renewal of an
Alcohol License and Common Victualers License for Rizzo’s Middleton.

5. Procurement Card Policy of the Finance Department- /Informational

J. Sultzbach gave an update to the Board’s concern there be a policy and Procurement Card for department heads.
Treasurer Nick Federico and Finance Director Sarah Wood were recognized for their work to put such a policy in place.
Two cards were activated for required uses, to avoid staff using personal credit cards on Town purchases. The Board
had a number of clarifying questions and offered minor edits to the policy. No action was required at this time.

6. *Open Warrant for May 12, 2026 Annual Town Meeting (ATM)
The Chair reminded individuals or groups interested in submitting a citizens petition for the May 12 ATM, to work with
the Town Administrator's office to make sure the warrant article is written and submitted correctly; the deadline for
this submission is March 24, 2026.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to open the Warrant for
the May 12, 2026 Annual Town Meeting.

Middleton Select Board
January 6, 2026 page: 2/3



7. Updates & Announcements
« K. Prentakis noted the postal service is honoring Phyllis Wheatley as the first published African-American poet with
its 49th Black Heritage Stamp, and that Phyllis Wheatley was a resident of Middleton.

8. Public Comment (to be held at 6pm for all Select Board meetings) — There was none.

9. Executive Session - Middleton Fire and AFSCME DPW
Vote: The Board voted unanimously by roll call, pursuant to G.L. c. 304, s. 21{a)(3) to discuss strategy with respect to
collective bargaining negotiations: Middleton Fire and AFSCME DPW and to return to open session for vote.

10. Return to open Session: Middleton Fire & AFSCME DPW Contract Ratifications
The Board returned to open session at pm. Chair Cresta noted the contract would be funded as part of the ATM in May
and recognized the Union, employees, J. Bresnahan, S. Woods, and DPW Director for all their work, and time. He
observed the DPW Union & employees are quick to negotiate, which is appreciated by the Board.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone the Board voted unanimously to approve the Middleton &
AFCME DPW Contract Ratifications.

Upcoming Select Board Meetings: January 20 & February 7- Operating Budget Saturday

Meeting Documents:
e Warrant 2613/2614 & FP77/78

*«  Minutes

»  W.T. Rich Company Change Order 13

»  QOckers Technologies Amendment

+  Valley Communication Systems Amendment

*  Town of Middleton Procurement Card Policy & Procedure / Agreement

Adjourn- The Board voted unanimously to adjourn at approximately — pm.

Catherine E. Tinsley 1.10.26
Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary Debbie Carbone, Select Board Clerk

The minutes were prepared from video.

Respectfully submitted as approved by the Select Board at the meeting.

Middleton Select Board
January 6, 2026 page: 3/3



PERMIT REPORT 7/1/25 - 12/31/25

Permit Type

Building Commercial:

All Other Construction 2 293.3
New Construction 2 0
Renovation 34 75753.77
Repairs 1 150
Total Building Commercial 39 76197.07
Building Residential:

Renovation 85 63224.16
New Construction 18 29128.09
All Other Construction 7 1442.9
Accessory Dwelling Unit - Attached 1 3116
Accessory Dwelling Unit - Freestanding 1 1141
Addition 2 1975.3
Repairs 3 521.88
Permit Renewal 4 400
Total Building Residential 121 100949.33
Certificate of Occupancy:

Commercial 1 100
Residential 7 150
Total Certificate of Occupancy 8 250
Certificate of Occupancy without Building Permit:

Commercial 5 500
Residential 11 550
Total Certificate of Occupancy without Building Pe 16 1050
Demolition Permit:

Commercial Building 1 156
Residential Building 2 200
Total Demolition Permit 3 356
Electrical Permit:

Commercial New 27 2299
Residential Existing 2 95
Residential New 80 3447
Total Electrical Permit 109 5841
Gas Fitting:

Commercial - New 9 600
Residential - New 56 3025
Total Gas Fitting 65 3625
Mechanical and Sheet Metal Permit: .
New 3 500
Renovation 6 2833
Replacement 14 910
Total Mechanical and Sheet Metal Permit 23 4243
Plumbing Permit:

Commercial - New 9 225




Residential - Existing 3 130
Residential - New 58 1380
Total Plumbing Permit 70 1735
Sign Permit:

Permanent 7 729
Temporary - Sign / A-Frame 7 175
Total Sign Permit 14 904
Solid Fuel Stove Permit:

Wood 1 88
Total Solid Fuel Stove Permit 1 88
Temporary Trailer:

Commercial Construction (storage) Trailer 1 0
Commercial Food Trailer/Truck 2 200
Total Temporary Trailer 3 200
Tent Permit:

Commercial Tent 2 100
Total Tent Permit 2 100
All Permit Total: 474 195538.4




Town of Middleton
Comprehensive Zoning
Review

PREPARED FOR B
Town of Middleton
48 S Main St.
Middleton, MA 01949
978.777.8917

PREPARED BY

<{hb.

260 Arsenal Place, #2
Watertown, MA 02472
617.924.1770

Octoher 20759



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Table of Contents

T ZoNiNg AUit OVEIVIEW ........cuourueircrnriririsincsseressasssassesesssssssssssssssssesssassnsasssssssssssssssssaes 2
2 Zoning Districts and USes ..........cccceuvuemierercvcnircrcscseesenns . N 4
2.1 RESIAENTIAl DISTIICES ....ovvveorivrirssecsreeereeseermseesmersseee s semas s ettt cemssess s sssses 4
22 OVEIIAY DISTIICES 1ovovveorceeerrerii e cesessecesssessscssossssssssssssss b sas s sassess s st 5
2.3 Flexible DeVelOPMENT ... iiiiinsscesssssssssessmsssss e i 5
24 DISEHCE BOUNTAIIES ...cevvvvvveeesesteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeessssss s sssssssssssssssssssssssssssss s 6
3 Dimensional Requirements..... SO0 T S o 7
3.1 LOt WIER oottt st sesss bbbt 7
32 SEEDACKS oottt bbb s 7
33 LOE SIZE et eveese s s s s s s8Rt 8
34 AAITIONA] STIUCTUTES ..o snss s sesecssssessse st sssessassasssmssssssessssesins 9
4 Site Design O SN O SO T S 10
4.1 PATKING .ovvovuresiveseee s eeeessseeessmseenesssss s s cosess st sas s bR R 10
4.2 DITVEWAYS ..o rrvvveerseeecevsaeassssecesesass e sessmsss bbb
43 Signage.....o.. eeeen s e ek ekt e e 15
44 Landscaping...... eeeeea AR R AR R AR e b
4.5 Performance StANUArAS...........vcmreemreess oo s enns s sescssssesmeesesessos 17
5 Administration and Procedures.. TS JOUNE - SOOI 2
5.1 Site Plan REVIBW ...t secesseesemsens s ssesens 2
52 SPECIAN PEIMNITS coooreeemerreeecesmeseceesreeccissseessssessens s sssssesssssses 3
53 Nonconforming Uses and Structures ... .6
5.4 Roles and ResponsSibilities ........emncnnccinesiririenins 7
55 Other Administration and Procedures Changes................ v
6 Miscellaneous S
6.1 DEFINITIONS w.oooee et teseesseenssesemsossssssesssssss s
6.2 Outdated INFOrMation ...
Appendix R, suseessasenanancashossnnsassnsasnsaassaiionnsaassssassns {Tiances STEoEoattorssee iiTs




Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

1

Zoning Audit Overview

This Comprehensive Zoning Review aims to update and streamline the Town of Middleton's

by assessing how the current zoning bylaw aligns with the Town's current goals and needs.
Given that Middleton last completed a comprehensive update to its zoning bylaw in 2008, this audit
identifies outdated and inconsistent provisions, along with regulatory barriers, and presents
recommendations to streamline the zoning code to make it easier for Town stakeholders to access
and understand.

While the zoning audit aims to make the zoning bylaw easier to use, it will not significantly change
the built environment or character of the town. It does not include substantial updates to zoning
districts, density, or type of development allowed. In addition, most changes apply only to new
construction or major renovations that trigger a zoning approval, and will not change existing
buildings.

To conduct this zoning audit, the project team reviewed existing documentation, including findings
from a 2022 Zoning Audit and previous Town planning documents. The team met with stakeholder
groups and Town boards to get input on challenges and opportunities related to the zoning bylaw
and suggested changes. These included a group of Town staff, developers who frequently work in
town, the Planning Board, Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA), and the Affordable Housing Trust. The
Town also held a public forum on September 30, 2025, to get input on proposed zoning changes.
Finally, the team reviewed zoning bylaws in peer communities in Massachusetts to identify best
practices and strategies that could be implemented in Middleton.

Middleton recently passed two zoning bylaw updates which were approved by the Massachusetts
Attorney General's Office in 2025:

e The Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) bylaw aligns with state requirements and allows ADUs by
right in residential districts, limited to one per lot, with a maximum size of 900 square feet or
> the primary home. The bylaw also sets out the process for site plan review for ADUs.

e The Floodplain Overlay District regulates development in FEMA-designated flood hazard
areas to protect public safety, property, and natural resources. All projects require permits,
must meet elevation and floodway standards, and are overseen by the Town Administrator
to ensure compliance with local, state, and federal regulations.

Given the recent nature of these zoning bylaw updates, this zoning audit does not provide
recommendations on these topics.

This report summarizes the key findings from the zoning audit across the following topics:
e Zoning districts and uses
e Dimensional requirements, including lot width, setbacks, and lot size
e Site design, including parking, signage, landscaping, and performance standards

e Administration and procedures, such as requirements for site plan review, special permits,
and variances, and the roles of the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoriing Review

e Miscellaneous items, including definitions and outdated information

For each topic, the report describes key issues identified in the zoning audit and recommended
changes to the zoning bylaw to address these issues.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

2

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

Zoning Districts and Uses

Zoning districts are established in Section 2 of the bylaw, while Section 3 outlines the use regulations
for each district. The bylaw and accompanying zoning map include four residential districts, two
business districts, and one industrial district, along with several overlay districts that provide
additional regulations on top of the existing base zoning rules for specific purposes. Requirements
for the different zoning districts are included throughout the zoning bylaw, including Section 7,
Special Residential Regulations, and Section 8, Special District Regulations.

Residential Districts

Village Residential District

The Village Residential (R-2) District requires a special permit granted by the Planning Board for
multifamily or attached dwellings, and Section 7.1 of the bylaw specifies dimensional requirements for
multifamily and attached dwellings in the R-2 District. Single-family and two-family dwellings are also
allowed in the R-2 District (two-family dwellings are allowed by special permit), but there are no
dimensional requirements listed, and the dimensional requirements for multifamily are not realistic for
one- and two-family dwellings (e.g., 100,000 square feet for an attached dwelling or townhouse
complex). If the Town wishes to allow single- and two-family dwellings in the R-2 District, the zoning
code should specify dimensional requirements, for example by aligning them with the R-1a
requirements,

Recommended change: Modify Section 7.1 and the Table of Dimensional Requirements to state
that dimensional requirements for single-family and two-family dwellings in the R-2 District align
with the requirements in the R-1a District.

Interstate Highway Business (IH) District

Section 4.2.1.7 states that, “The total number of apartment dwelling units in an IH District shall not
exceed 416 of such units.” However, in the Table of Use Regulations, no residential uses are
permitted in the IH District. Therefore, section 4.2.1.7 should be removed. This change would not
affect the existing apartment units in the IH District, which are already considered non-conforming
uses.

If the Town wants to allow multifamily dwellings in the IH District, the Table of Use Regulations
should be updated accordingly, and there should be a discussion about approprlate dimensional
requirements for the district rather than a unit cap.

Recommended change: Remove section 4.2.1.7.

Accessory Uses and Structures

Town Counsel recommended a minor wording change to Section 3.2.1.6 of its Zoning Bylaws by
substituting the word “room” with “rooms".

Recommended change: Modify Section 3.2.1.6 to state: "Renting of rooms to not more than two
boarders.”



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

2.2

2.2.1

2.3

2.3.1

Overlay Districts

Institutional Overlay District

Several stakeholders recommended removing the Institutional Overlay District (I0D) from the zoning
bylaw, as in practice most of the uses allowed in the IOD are protected under the Dover Amendment
(Massachusetts G.L. ¢. 40A, § 3), meaning that the IOD is redundant.

Recommended change: Remove Section 8.3, Institutional Overlay District (IOD). Remove
mentions of the IOD in Sections 2.2, 6.5, and 9.5, and the zoning districts map.

Flexible Development

Flexible/open space development

Middleton added flexible development regulations (Section 7.3) to its zoning bylaw in 2009. The
flexible development provisions are intended to offer an alternative to standard subdivision
development in a way that can meet Town goals around preservation of open land, development of
affordable and senior housing, and better overall site planning. Developers have the option to use
the flexible development regulations anywhere in town (including but not limited to subdivisions)
and must seek a special permit from the Planning Board in order to do so.

Currently, the baseline number of dwelling units allowed in a flexible development cannot exceed the
number of lots which could reasonably be expected to be developed upon the site under a
conventional development. In other words, the number of units in a flexible development and
conventional development would be the same, based on the buildable land area of the site.
Additional density bonuses, up to 40% additional units, are provided for conserving additional open
space, constructing age restricted units, or providing additional amenities to the town (section 7.3.8).
These units must be two-bedroom units with deed restrictions in perpetuity.

In addition, a minimum of 15% of the total number of dwelling units in a flexible development must
be deed-restricted affordable housing units.

Several stakeholders shared that these flexible development provisions are not frequently used and
should be updated to better meet the Town’s goals. No developments using the flexible zoning have
been permitted since 2019. Many municipalities have adopted “Open Space Residential
Development” bylaws with similar goals as Middieton's flexible development regulations. The VHB
team reviewed model open space design bylaws from the Massachusetts Smart Growth/Smart
Energy Toolkit and the Rioneer Valley Planning Commission Smart Growth Toolkit, as well as the
Town of Wakefield's open space development regulations. and identified several recommendations
to streamline and improve Middleton’s flexible development regulations.

Recommended change: Consider the following changes to section 7.3, Flexible Development, to
encourage more residential development that aligns with town goals around open space and site
planning:

o Make flexible development projects by-right with site plan review (rather than requiring a
special permit), to-encourage any development on rural land/open space to be
completed in a way that is compact, sustainable/efficient in its use of town and natural
resources, and helps preserve community character.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

e Consider zoning incentives, such as density bonuses, for projects that use the flexible -
development zoning and preserve open space rather than standard zoning provisions.
The total maximum density bonus could remain the same (up to 40% unit count increase),
but be distributed differently (e.g., 20% increase for using flexible development over
standard zoning, and up to 20% for the open space and affordability incentives currently
in the zoning bylaw).

e Consider removing the requirement that all of the units constructed under the density
bonus must be deed restricted 2-bedrooms, which may make the density bonuses less
attractive to developers due to the lower profit margins for building affordable housing.
Maintaining the 15% affordability requirement for flexible development would encourage
affordable housing construction in a more feasible way.

» Add detail about the application and design review process for flexible development
projects to provide consistency for applicants. Consider adding a pre-application
consultation and site visit to get early input from the Town on a proposed project, which
currently happens in practice but is not codified in the zoning bylaw. Add more details on
building design, as specified in the state’s model bylaw and adapted for Middleton as
appropriate, to create certainty for applicants and reduce subjectivity in reviews.

2.4 District Boundaries

2.4.1 Boundaries of zoning districts

Town Counsel and other stakeholders recommended minor changes to section 2.4, Boundaries of
districts, to align with current practice and reduce confusion.

Recommended change: Replace section 2.4.2 to state that the boundary lines of zoning districts
shall be based on the Town'’s GIS zoning map and parcel data (looking for language from the town
on how to refer to the town'’s GIS map).

Replace section 2.4.5 with the following language: “2.4.5 Lot split by district lines. Where a district
boundary line divides any lot existing at the time such line is adopted, the regulations that apply
to the larger part of the area of such lot may, at the option of the lot owner, apply in the smaller
part beyond such district boundary for a distance not to exceed 30 linear feet, if the smaller part
has frontage on a public way.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

3 Dimensional Requirements

Section 4.0 of the Zoning Bylaw and its accompanying Table of Dimensional Requirements outlines
dimensional requirements for buildings and structures, including lot coverage, lot area, land area per
dwelling unit, lot width, front, side and rear setbacks, and maximum height.

3.1 Lot Width

3.1.1 Lot width measurement

In the current zoning, lot width is measured as the shortest distance between side lot lines taken
through the dwelling, and for irregularly shaped lots the matter is decided by the Building
Commissioner with the advice of the Planning Board. Since most new lots are not abnormally shaped,
Town Counsel recommended simplifying this provision.

Recommendéd change: Modify section 4.1.2.1 to state: “Lot width. Lot width shall be measured -
as the shortest distance between side lot lines. At no point shall the lot be narrower than 75% of
the required lot frontage.”

3.2 Setbacks

3.2.1 Residential front setbacks

The front yard setback in the R-1a, R-1b, and RA Districts is 25 feet to the lot line or 50 feet to the
street center line, whichever is greater (Section 4.1.2.2). This could lead to a situation where similar
types of dwelling units have different setback requirements depending on the width of the road. To
streamline the zoning code and align with common practice, it is recommended to measure the
setback from the lot line only.

Recommended change: Modify section 4.1.2.2 to state: “Front yard. In the R-1a, R-1b, and RA
Districts the required front yard is 25 feet to the lot line.”

3.2.2 North Main Street front setback

For lots with frontage on North Main Street in the Business and Light Industrial District, the required
front setback is 100 feet. There is some ambiguity about this requirement, as the Table of
Dimensional Requirements states 100 feet, while section 4.1.2.4 states 100 feet from the center line
of the street. In either case, the 100-foot setback leads to buildings being pushed back extremely far
from the lot line, limiting opportunities for an engaging streetscape and restricting development to
large lots (with enough depth after the 100-foot setback to construct a building). Several
stakeholders recommended reducing the front setbacks on North Main Street to be more in line with
those elsewhere in town, which are 30 feet from the lot line in the B and M-1 district In addition, the
setback in North Main Street just over the town line in North Andover is 30 feet in the business and
residential districts, and 50 feet for a small segment of an industrial district.?

" Town of North Aadov_er, Summary Of Dimensional Requirements. https://e
r 15.pdT



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Recommended change: Modify the setback on North Main Street in the B and M-1 districts to
30 feet from the lot line to be consistent with setbacks elsewhere in town. To make the
requirements for North Main Street consistent with the rest of town, remove section 5.1.3, which
states that no parking shall be located in the required front yard along the frontage of North
Main Street.

Setbacks. North Main Street

100" Setback (Existiﬁg) —H s

30 Setback {Proposed)

e

Figure 1: Comparison of existing and proposed front setbacks for North Main Street.

3.2.3 Setbacks in Table of Use Regulations

The Table of Use Regulations includes specific setback and access requirements for particular districts
and uses. A * indicates that a commercial use is allowed, “only with frontage on South Main and
North Main Street and not more than 500 feet back from the center line of South Main Street on
either side of the street.” ** indicates that an industrial use is allowed, “only with frontage on South
Main south of the intersection with Meadow Drive.” These provisions are arbitrary and add
complication to the zoning bylaw. These provisions should be removed, and the Town should instead
assess setback and access requirements through the site plan review and/or special permit process.

Recommended change: Remove the * and ** and associated key from the Table of Use
Regulations.

3.3 Lot Size

3.3.1 Minimum lot size

Town Counsel recommended minor wording changes to clarify section 6.6.1, which discusses
minimum lot size for industrial parks.

Recommended change: Replace section 6.6.1 with the following language: "General. An
industrial park shall have a minimum lot size of at least 320,000 square feet (7.346 acres). This



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

requirement does not prohibit the construction of more than one building on a lot of less than
320,000 square feet in the M-1 District or applicable Business districts, provided that the lot meets
all other requirements of the M-1 District or applicable Business district.”

3.4 Additional Structures

3.4.1 Setbacks for accessory structures

Section 3.2.3 of the zoning bylaw describes the dimensional requirements for accessory buildings
that are slightly different from the requirements for the primary structure (e.g., the front setback for
the accessory building is 25 feet from the street but 25 feet from the lot line for the primary
structure; side setbacks are 20 feet vs. 15 or 30 feet in the main residential district). To streamline the
zoning code and reduce confusion, it is recommended that accessory buildings have the same
setback requirements as the principal building.

Recommended change: Modify section 3.2.3 to state: “Accessory building. An accessory building,
including a detached garage, located on any lot shall have the same setback requirements as the
primary structure. No accessory building shall be located closer than 20 feet to any dwelling or
main structure on a lot unless both structures conform to regulations relative to fire safety.”

3.4.2 Multiple uses and structures

The zoning code is unclear on how many structures/uses can be allowed on one lot. If the town
wants to allow multiple uses on a lot (i.e., mixed-use development), this would require clarification in
the zoning code.

Recommended change: To align with current practice, update section 3.1, Principal Uses, to state
that only one principal use is allowed on a lot, and multiple structures are allowed in all non-
residential districts (in residential districts, only one principal structure is allowed on a lot).



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

4 Site Design

4.1

4.1.1

The zoning bylaw provides specifics for site design in Section 5, General Regulations, which lays out
requirements related to parking, signage, landscaping, and performance standards.

Parking

Parking requirements
Stakeholders shared that the parking requirements in the zoning bylaw are not working well, with

some uses requiring too much parking and others too little. VHB reviewed the parking requirements
in the zoning bylaws of nearby towns of a similar size — Littleton, Topsfield, Georgetown, and North
Reading - to understand how Middleton could update its parking requirements to align with
common practice.

Middleton’s minimum requirements for residential dwellings, retail establishments, hotels and
motels, and places of assembly are consistent with these communities and seem to be meeting
Middleton’s needs.

The minimum requirement for business/professional offices is more stringent in Middleton than in
neighboring communities. Middleton requires 1 space per 200 square feet of gross floor area, while
Topsfield and Georgetown require 1 space per 300 square feet and Littleton requires 1 space per 250
square feet. Similarly, while Middleton requires 1 space per 200 square feet of gross floor area for
uses not specified in the zoning bylaw, other communities require 1 space per 250-350 square feet
or defer to the appropriate reviewing authority’s discretion. To be more in line with neighboring
communities and ensure that it is not overbuilding parking, Middleton could change its parking
requirements for business/professional offices and any uses not specified to 1 space per 300 square
feet of gross floor area.

Middleton's zoning bylaw specifies the number of parking spaces required for banks (1 space per
200 square feet gross floor area exclusive of storage area by not fewer than 5 spaces per separate
enterprise). Since this amount is the same as retail sales, Middleton could remove the specific listing for
banks in the Table of Parking Requirements. This would simplify the zoning code and align with nearby
communities, which don't have specific requirements for banks.

Middleton does not set minimum parking requirements for schools or educational facilities, while
other communities set minimums based on the number of classrooms, students, teachers, and
employees, or a combination thereof. For example, Topsfield’s requirements for schools are:

e For pre-school through Grade 8: 1 space per employee plus 1 space per classroom
e For High School: 1 space per employee and 1 space per 3 students

Table 1 shows the parking requirements for conventional (non-fast food) restaurants in Middleton
and other towns in the region. While Middleton requires a set number of spaces per square feet of a
restaurant (1 space per 250 square feet), most other communities base the required number of
spaces on seating capacity (on average 1 space per 4 seats of seating capacity, although some

10



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

communities require 1 space per 3 seats). While some towns require parking for restaurant
employees as well, this is not the norm. Stakeholders shared that restaurants often don‘t have
enough parking, so updating the requirement to be based on restaurant seating capacity would help

to address this issue.

To have a straightforward requirement that is enforceable even when restaurant staffing levels
change over time, it is recommended that Middleton require 1 space per 3 seats of seating capacity,
with the understanding that this would cover parking for both customers and employees. This would
be a significant increase over Middleton's current requirement, which is the equivalent of about 1
space per 12-17 seats (assuming 15-20 square feet per seat as an average for restaurants).

Table 1: Comparisen of Parking Requirements for Restaurants

|
L

' Middleton (currgnt) . 1 space per 250 SF GFA

Town Minimum Parking Requirement for

Conventional Restaurants

| Littleton 1 space per 4 seaté, plus 1 space per employee

on the larger shift.

' Topsfield 1 space per 5 seats with a minimum of 12

spaces in the Business District Village

1 space per 3 seats with a minimum of 20
spaces in the Business District Highway,

Business District Highway North and the |
Business Park District - ]

Georgetown | 1 space per 4 seats

‘maﬁ L | A space per 3 seats or 2 spéEés per 150 SF GFA;_I
excluding basement storage area, whicheveris |
greater. ‘
N;Ft—ﬁR_eading b N space per 4 seats - ____1

North Andover | 15 spaces per 1,000 SF GFA (1 space per 67 SF
| GFA) |
! Wakefield T;p;é pe—r_3 employees in the maximum g_|

working shift, plus 1 space per 4 seats |

Recommended change: Make the following changes to the Table of Parking Requirements
in section 5.1.2 of the zoning bylaw:

Business or professional office - 1 space per 300 square feet gross floor area
Bank — remove (banks fall under retail sales/service and have the same requirement)
Restaurant - 1 space per 3 seats of seating capacity

Remove Restaurant, fast-food (see section on Definitions below for more information)

1



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

412

413

414

e Add Schools and educational facilities — For pre-school through Grade 8: 1 space per
employee plus 1 space per classroom; For High School: 1 space per employee and 1 space
per 3 students

o All other uses - 1 space per 300 square feet gross floor area or such number of spaces in
accordance with anticipated needs as determined by the Board of Appeals with the advice
of the Planning Board

Parking lot design

The zoning bylaw lacks information on parking lot design and layout, such as required dimensions
for parking spaces and aisle width for one-way and two-way traffic to ensure sufficient passing
distance. Most zoning bylaws include more detail about parking lot layout to ensure safety as well as
consistency across the town. Middleton could add a new subsection under Section 5.1 to specify
dimensional and layout requirements for parking lots.

Recommended change: Add a new subsection 5.1.5 (and adjust numbering accordingly) to
specify parking space dimensions for angled and parallel parking, and aisle widths for one- and
two-way traffic for different parking lot configurations.

Parking lot landscaping

Section 5.1.5 specifies parking lot landscaping requirements on North Main Street, but to provide
consistency this should be expanded townwide for all lots with 10 or more spaces.

Recommended change: Modify 5.1.5 to remove the reference to North Main Street frontage.
Section 5.1.5 should state the following: “Parking lot plantings. Parking lots containing 10 or more
parking spaces shall have at least one tree per eight parking spaces, such trees to be located
either within the lot or within five feet of it. At least 5% of the interior of any parking lot having 25
or more spaces shall be maintained with landscaping, including trees, in plots of at least eight feet
in width; trees shall be so located as to provide visual relief and sun and wind interruption within
the parking area and to assure safe patterns of internal circulation.”

Compact cars

Stakeholders suggested that Middleton require a certain percentage of spaces for compact cars.
While zoning bylaws do not typically require compact car parking spaces, some allow for a certain
percentage of spaces to be designated for compact cars. For example, Millis, Manchester-By-The-
Sea, and Marlborough allow up to 33% of spaces within a parking lot to be dedicated to compact
cars, while Needham allows up to 50% of spaces. The dimensions of a compact car parking space is
typically 8 feet wide by 16 feet in depth.? ‘

Middleton’s zoning bylaw does not specify the required size for standard parking spaces, so if
allowances for compact spaces are added the bylaw should also specify the size for standard parking

spaces.

Recommended change: Add section 5.1.7 to state: “Compact cars. Off-street parking areas may
be designed to allow up to a maximum of 15% of the total number of parking spaces to be used
by compact cars. Compact car spaces shall not be less than 8 feet by 16 feet.”

12



3

Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Add section 5.1.8 to state, “Parking Space Size. Each parking space, except for the allowable
percentage for compact cars, shall measure at least 9 feet in width and 18 feet in length; however,
parallel parking spaces shall be at least 20 feet in length. The required parking space dimensions,
including those for compact car spaces, shall not be reduced by obstructions, including, but not
limited to, light poles and columns.”

4.1.5 Shared parking

Stakeholders suggested that the zoning bylaw should include allowances for shared parking, where
multiple establishments share parking and total parking requirements may be reduced if the
establishments can demonstrate that the parking will be utilized at different times of day and there is
sufficient parking. A number of communities in Massachusetts have regulations for shared parking in
their zoning bylaws.? In general, these regulations allow shared parking by special permit, and require
the applicant to demonstrate that the peak parking demand and hours of operation vary enough to
accommodate a shared parking facility. Municipalities that allow for shared parking include different
levels of detail in their zoning bylaw, which may include:

e What percentage parking may be reduced by (e.g., up to 50 percent)
o Specific uses for which shared parking is allowed

» Methodology for calculating the reduction

e Process for approving shared parking (generally special permit)

Recommended change: Add a new section 5.1.7 on Shared Parking, to read as follows?: Shared
private parking facilities for different buildings or uses may be allowed by Special Permit, subject
to the following provisions: (a) Up to fifty percent (50%) of the parking spaces serving a building
may be used jointly for other uses not normally open, used or operated during similar hours. The
applicant must show that the peak parking demand and principal operating hours for each use
are suitable for a common parking facility. {b) A written agreement defining the joint use
acceptable to the Zoning Board of Appeals of the common parking facility shall be executed by all .
parties concerned and approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals as part of the special permit
process. Such agreement shall be recorded at the Essex County Registry of Deeds. (c) Any
subsequent change in land uses for which the shared parking proposal was approved, and which
results in the need for additional parking spaces, shall require a new special permit application
under this subsection.

4.1.6 Electric vehicle parking

Town staff noted that requirements around electric vehicle parking are included in the building code,
and the zoning bylaw should reference or match this. Middleton follows the state’s
, which requires up to 10 percent of parking spaces be “EV ready”, with wiring suitable for Level

2 EV chargers (see section C405.13). The zoning bylaw could reference these requirements so that

applicants see all of the relevant information about parking in one place.

Recommended change: Add section 5.1.9 to state: "Electric Vehicle Ready Spaces. Parking lots
must comply with section C405.13 of the Massachusetts Base Energy Code,
to provide spaces wired for electric vehicle supply equipment (note: confirm with the town the best

a

4 This Ianguage is based on Stoneham’s bylaw

13



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

way to reference these requirements. Want to ensure the reference stays accurate even if the state
updates the building code).

4.1.7 Parking space banking

ZBA members noted that land banking parking spaces (i.e,, keeping some of the required parking as
open space with the option to develop into parking in the future if needed) is something that they
permit, but this practice is not detailed in the zoning bylaw. The bylaw states “The Zoning Board of
Appeals may require the establishment of a reserve area where a reduction in the number of spaces
is authorized” (Section 5.1.6). However, it does not detail how much reserved space is allowed or the
process for converting it to parking in the future.

Some towns in Massachusetts, including Concord, Framingham, and North Andover, include the
option of land banking parking spaces (also referred to as reserved parking spaces) in their zoning
bylaws. These bylaws typically include the amount of reserved parking allowed (e.g., no more than
50% of spaces), the process for converting land-banked space to parking, and dimensional and
design requirements for the reserved spaces.

Recommended change: Add section 5.1.6.1 on ““Reserve Parking” as follows>: “a. The Zoning
Board of Appeals may require the establishment of a reserve area where a reduction in the
number of spaces is authorized.

b. The spaces that are not intended for construction immediately shall be labeled "Reserve
Parking” on the site plan and shall be properly designed as an integral part of the overall parking
layout, located on land suitable for parking development and in no case located within area
counted as buffer, setback, or open space under other provisions of this Bylaw.

c. No more than fifty (50) percent of the total number of required spaces may be reserved for
later construction.

d. At the request of the Board of Appeals, the applicant may be required to provide a parking
monitoring program in order to determine if and when the land-banked parking spaces are
needed.

e. If, after the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Board of Appeals or the applicant finds
that all or a portion of the reserve parking spaces are needed, the applicant shall submit a written
request for a minor modification to the site plan, stating such need and, if approved, denote the
revision on the site plan.

4.1.8 Pedestrian Access

Town Counsel recommended adding detail on pedestrian access requirements for parking lots.

Recommended change: Add section 5.1.11 as follows: "Pedestrian access: All parking areas or
parking lots with five (5) or more spaces shall be designed to safely accommodate pedestrian
access and circulation.”

5 Language based on Concord (section 7.7.2.8) and Framingham (section 435-24.E.3) bylaws.
14



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.3

4.3.1

Driveways

Driveway access

The Middleton Fire Chief raised concerns about the common driveways policy and emergency vehicle
access, and suggested modeling Middleton’s policy off of Hopkinton's, which includes specific
requirements for emergency vehicle access.

Recommended change: Modify 6.3.6.1 to state: “The radius of the driveway where it intersects
with the street right-of-way (ROW) must be sufficient to enable emergency vehicles to exit and
enter the common driveway without leaving the surface of the common driveway. Moreover, the
center line intersection with the street center line shall not be less than 45 degrees.”

Driveway distance

Section 6.3.3 states that the distance of a driveway from the street line to the principal building
cannot exceed 500 feet, but that the ZBA can waive this requirement by special permit. Stakeholders
recommended removing the special permit option, so that the 500 feet requirement cannot be
waived.

Recommended change: Modify 6.3.3 to state: “Maximum distance. The distance of any driveway
measured from the street line to the point where the principal building is proposed shall not
exceed a distance of 500 feet.”

Sighage

Wording and formatting changes

The Town recommended wording and formatting changes to Section 5.2.11 to clarify the intent of
this section.

Recommended change: Modify Section 5.2.11 to read as follows:
"5.2.11. Permitted signs — all Business and Industrial Districts.

Accessory signs. A premises shall be allowed to have one accessory ground sign and either one
accessory roof or one accessory wall sign, subject to the provisions set forth below and unless
otherwise specifically permitted hereby.

1. Ground signs. Only one ground sign is permitted on any premises regardless of the number of
buildings on such premises.

a. No ground sign shall extend more than 15 feet above ground level.
b. For single-occupant buildings, the sign area shall not exceed 36 square feet.

¢. For multiple-occupant buildings, the sign area shall not exceed 36 square feet plus an
additional six square feet for each additional occupant up to a maximum area of 96 square
feet.

d. Sign areas larger than 96 square feet and signs in excess of 15 feet above ground level may
be allowed by special permit of the Board of Appeals in accordance with Section 5.2.7.

2. Roof signs and wall signs. Each building located at a premises shall be entitled to only one roof

sign or only one wall sign.
15



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

a. The total sign area of any wall or roof sign shall not exceed more than one square foot for
every one linear foot of the building frontage. See Exhibit 3, attached hereto, for an example of
how to compute sign area.

b. A building that is situated on lot where the main public entrances of the majority of its
occupants face a parking lot shall be entitled to use the linear footage of the side of the
building wall that faces the parking lot in determining the permissible sign area.

¢. The center line of any roof sign shall not exceed the midline of the roof and shall not extend
above the ridge of the roof. See the figure shown on Exhibit 2, attached hereto, for a depiction
of permitted roof signs.

d. All allowed wall signs and roof signs shall be limited to the designs shown on Exhibits 2 and
3, attached.

e. Subject to the issuance of a special permit by the Board of Appeals in accordance with
Section 5.2.7, a multi-occupant building may be permitted to erect multiple roof and wall signs
for each occupant, provided in addition to all other criteria listed herein and in Section 9.4 of
the Zoning Bylaw the owner or interested party is able to demonstrate to the Board that:

(1) The combined sign area shall not exceed the sign area as determined under
Subsection 2.a above.

(2) In no event shall a building have a combination of wall and roof signs.

(3) Wall signs on a single building, or multiple buildings within a premises, shall be
consistent in size, color, and character providing for a uniform design.

f. Subject to the issuance of a special permit by the Board of Appeals in accordance with Section
5.2.7, a building may have wall or roof signs on more than one side of a building, provided in
addition to all other criteria listed herein and in Section 9.4 of the Zoning Bylaw the owner or
interested party is able to demonstrate to the Board that:

(1) The building is located on a corner lot with legal frontage on both sides, as
determined for the applicable zoning district; or

(2) The building is situated on a lot where the main public entrances for its occupants face
its parking lot and a street on which the premises has legal frontage;

and in either situation the sign is to be placed on the side of the building with legal
frontage or that faces its parking lot; and the combined sign area of all such signs shall
not exceed sign area as determined under Subsection 2.a above.”

4.3.2 Unenforceable requirements

Town Counsel recommended deleting several sections relating to signage that are not enforceable or
practical. Section 5.2.12, Temporary signs not requiring a permit, is not enforceable, as it includes
requirements for temporary signs but no way to verify if the requirements are met. Similarly, Section
5.2.14 provides guidelines for the content and design of signs that are difficult to enforce/verify and
leaves discretion to the Zoning Board of Appeals and the Building Commissioner in considering
compliance. In particular, stakeholders mentioned issues with Section 14.1.a-c, which includes
detailed guidelines about the content of signs that are difficult to verify. In the interest of
streamlining the zoning code and making it more user-friendly, these sections could be deleted
without substantively changing the requirements.

16



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

4.4

4.4.1

4.5

4.5.1

452

Recommended change: Delete Section 5.2.12 and Section 5.2.14.

Landscaping

Business District landscaping

Section 4.1.2.6 includes landscaping requirements for the Business District. Town Counsel
recommended minor wording changes to this section.

Recommended change: Modify section 4.1.2 to state: “Front yard; Business District. Front yards
shall be suitably landscaped, be unbuilt upon, be unpaved and not parked on. Adequate
entrances and exits shall be allowed in this front yard.”

Performance Standards

Multifamily housing

Section 5.4 describes performance standards for nonresidential developments, which are intended to
control the size, scale, and impacts of nonresidential developments. These performance standards
are considered during the special permit or site plan review process, and include requirements
related to lighting, noise, site development, and pedestrian and vehicular access. Stakeholders
recommended adding multifamily residential development to uses that require adherence to the
performance standards.

Recommended change: Rename section 5.4 "Performance Standards for Nonresidential and
Multi-family Residential Development.” Replace Section 5.4.1 with the following: “Purpose. The
following performance standards have been adopted in order to control the size, scale, and
impacts of nonresidential and multi-family residential developments. The Board of Appeals and
Planning Board shall ensure that such standards are met during the course of any special permit
application or site plan review for a nonresidential or multi-family use.”

Traffic study

Section 5.4.5.7 states that “The Board of Appeals may require a traffic study, prepared by a
qualified traffic engineer, detailing the excepted traffic impacts.” Members of the ZBA noted that
there should be more information in the zoning code about when a traffic study is required to make
the decision less subjective. The ZBA regulations (section 260-4.B.2.c) provides detail about when a
traffic study is required and how it should be conducted. The ZBA regulations could be modified in the
future, or these requirements could be incorporated into the zoning bylaw update.

Recommended change: Modify section 5.4.5.7 to reference the ZBA regulations, as follows: “The
Board of Appeals may require a traffic study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer,
detailing the expected traffic impacts, as specified in the Town of Middleton Zoning Board of

Appeals Rules, section 260-4.B.2.c.

17



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

4.5.3 Pedestrian access and sidewalks

Stakeholders suggested adding language to section 5.4.5 to address pedestrian access and
sidewalks. The ZBA passed a Pedestrian Improvement Policy in 2022, which aims to promote
sidewalk construction and rehabilitation and on-site pedestrian improvements for projects that
require site plan approval. The Pedestrian Improvement Policy is included in the Zoning Board of
Appeals Rules, but elements of this policy could be incorporated into the zoning bylaw as well.

Recommended change: Add section 5.4.10 that states, "Each development must
demonstrate that it provides adequate on-site pedestrian amenities, and construction of new
sidewalks and/or rehabilitation of an existing sidewalk along the frontage of the subject
property.”



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

5

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

513

Administration and Procedures

Section 9 of the zoning bylaw addresses Administration and Procedure, including the roles and
responsibilities of the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals, as well as the processes for
special permits and site plan review.

Site Plan Review

Activities requiring site plan review

Stakeholders suggested requiring site plan review for several additional activities and uses.
Recommended change: Add the following uses requiring site plan review to Section 9.5.2..
3. An addition to or alteration of an existing building for commercial or industrial use
4. Any changes to commercial uses in residentially zoned districts
5. Any educational use, as defined under G.L. c. 40A, §3.
6. Accessory Dwelling Units, as described in Section 7.5.5 of this Zoning Bylaw.
7. Two-family dwellings
8. Any other use or structure for which Site Plan Approval is prescribed under these Zoning
Bylaws.

Childcare facilities

Stakeholders suggested adding site plan review for childcare facilities. The zoning bylaw permits
childcare facilities in all zoning districts. The bylaw (section 10.1) includes definitions for childcare
facility, family day care, and adult day care. Family day care is defined as any private residence
operating a facility as defined in G.L. c. 28A, § 9, and is considered an accessory use under section
3.2.1. Adult day care is also considered an accessory use.

Given that childcare facilities are allowed in all districts, adding site plan review for childcare
facilities would help ensure that these facilities fit in with the surrounding context. Since family
day cares operate out of existing homes and are considered an accessory use, site plan review is
not necessary for family day cares. Similarly, site plan review could be required for adult day care
facilities, other than those that operate as an accessory use in a residence.

Recommended change: Add childcare facility (not including family day care) and adult day
care to the list of activities requiring site plan review under section 9.5.2. In other words,
require site plan review for any daycare not operating out of an existing residence as an
accessory use.

Screening requirements

Town Counsel recommended adding a site plan review process related to screening where a lot
in the Business or Light Industrial District abuts a Residential District. Section 4.1.2.5 describes
additional setback requirements in this situation (side and rear setbacks of 35 feet, and no



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

5.1.4

5.2

5.2.1

522

parking in the setback areas unless buffer screens are provided). Screening could be added to
the one of the considerations for site plan approval described in Section 9.5.11.

Recommended change: Add to the list of site plan approval considerations listed in section
9.5.11 language stating: “Where a lot in the Business or Light Industrial District abuts a
Residential District, compliance with requirements for setbacks and screening.”

Contents of plan
Town Counsel recommended one addition to the list of items required as part of a site plan.

Recommended change: Add a new Section 9.5.5.f that states: “The Board may adopt
regulations requiring additional information consistent with this Bylaw, and may require filing
via electronic means.”

Special Permits

Special Permit Granting Authority

The Table of Use Regulations details which uses are allowed by-right and which by special
permit, and who is the special permit granting authority (SPGA). Currently, the Zoning Board of
Appeals is the SPGA in most cases, but Planning Board is responsible for special permits for 2-
family dwellings, multifamily in R-2 district, and Flexible Development. Since 2019, the Planning
Board has issued 8 special permits, primarily for the development of two-family dwellings, and
no denials.

Middleton staff and board members expressed a desire to consolidate reviews and approvals
and make the process more transparent for those seeking a special permit. To do so, the SPGA
could be changed to the Zoning Board of Appeals in all cases. Section 9.4.1. states, "Unless
specifically designated otherwise, the Board of Appeals shall act as the special permit granting
authority.” The Table of Use Regulations would need to be updated to indicate that the ZBA is
the special permit granting authority for all uses.

The Planning Board would still review and make a recommendation to the ZBA on all projects
requiring site plan approval, as is current practice.

Recommended change: Modify the Table of Use Regulations to note that the Zoning Board
of Appeals is the special permit granting authority for all uses.

Approved street plan

Town Counsel recommended wording changes to clarify that a special permit is required when a
lot will be built on an unconstructed way.

Recommended change: Modify section 6.7.1 to state, “General. No building permit shall be
issued unless the lot to be built upon has frontage on a street, as defined in this Zoning
Bylaw, or, if it is on an unconstructed way, such way shall be constructed in accordance with
the Planning Board Subdivision rules and regulations providing adequate access to existing
lots, with said plan being subject to receipt of Special Permit approval.”



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

523

5.24

5.2.5

5.2.6

Lapse of special permits

The current zoning bylaw states that special permits lapse if substantial use or construction has
not begun within 24 months of the special permit approval. Stakeholders recommended
extending this timeline to 36 months.

Recommended change: Modify section 9.4.8 to state, “Lapse. Special permits shall lapse if a
substantial use thereof or construction thereunder has not begun, except for good cause,
within 36 months following the filing of the special permit approval (plus such time required
to pursue or await the determination of an appeal referred to in G.L. ¢. 40A, § 17, from the
grant thereof) with the Town Clerk.”

Business District special permit

Section 4.2.5 of the zoning bylaw allows businesses that do not meet the dimensional
requirements to apply for a special permit. Town Counsel recommended changing this to cover
only residentially-used lots in the Business District, with language as follows: “Business District;
special permit. A residentially used lot in the Business District which does not meet the area or
frontage requirements of this Section 4.0 may be converted to a commercial use and apply for a
special permit from the Board of Appeals to exempt such lot from the dimensional requirements
for lot area, lot frontage and width, and side and rear yards. Any such special permit shall ensure
compliance with the needs of public safety, health and welfare.”

Recommended change: Needs discussion with town to understand why this change is being
made, as it seems to change the meaning pretty substantially. Currently any lot in the Business
District can apply for a special permit for dimensional requirements, while with this change only
residentially used lots that convert to commercial can do so.

Wireless telecommunication facilities

Section 6.5 of the zoning bylaw outlines requirements for wireless telecommunication facilities,
including a requirement for a special permit issued by the Board of Appeals in the M-1 and IH
districts. Wireless telecommunication facilities are not allowed in other zoning districts. "Wireless
communication systems” are defined in section 10 of the bylaw. Middleton should review these
sections to determine if it needs to be modernized to align with current technologies. Towns that
have recently updated the wireless communication aspects of their zoning bylaws, such as

aton or , could be a good model for Middleton to follow.

Recommended change: Needs discussion with town. What are the specific issues with how this
is currently written and how would the town like to change this?

Earth removal

The zoning bylaw contains contradictory information about whether a special permit is required
for earth removal. Section 3.2.1 lists “Removal of sod, loam, sand, gravel or other earth product in
connection with the construction of a building” as an accessory use for residential districts.
Section 6.2 states that the removal of sod, loam, sand, gravel, or other products from a lot is
prohibited except by special permit granted by the ZBA. Section 3.2.1 should be modified to
clarify that a special permit is required, and the table of use regulations should also be modified
to note that a special permit is required.-This would align with the Town's general bylaws Chapter
130, which state, “No sod, loam, clay, sand, gravel, quarried stone or other earth material which
forms a part of the real estate of the Town of Middleton shall be carried, conveyed or moved



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

outside the boundaries of the Town of Middleton for any purpose whatsoever, except for new
building construction, at which time the Board of Appeals may grant a special permit for removal
of clay, sand, gravel, or quarried stone from the Town of Middleton.”

Recommended change: Modify section 3.2.1.3 to state, “Subject to receipt of approvals as
required under Section 6.2 of this Bylaw, removal of sod, loam, sand, gravel or other earth
product in connection with the construction of a building for which a building permit has
been issued, subject to the Town bylaws, and further provided that the amount of such
material removed does not exceed the amount contained, before construction, in the
particular space to be occupied by the foundation of said building.”

Modify Table of Use Regulations (row G.4) to clarify that earth removal requires a special
permit by the ZBA.

5.2.7 Temporary Uses

Under Section 3.4, temporary uses for amusement and recreation require the issuance of a special
permit from the Select Board. This is the only activity where the Select Board is involved in
granting of a special permit. To streamline the zoning bylaw and have fewer approvals involved,
Middleton could consider changing this responsibility to the ZBA. Alternatively, Middleton could
consider an administrative, staff-level approval for temporary uses rather than requiring a special
permit. Confirm preferred approach with the town.

Recommended change: Modify section 3.4 to state, “Temporary uses for amusement and
recreation shall require the issuance of a special permit from the Board of Appeals, and may
be subject to appropriate conditions.” Modify the Table of Use Regulations to replace
Select Board with Board of Appeals for the special permit granting authority for temporary
uses.

5.2.8  Activities requiring a special permit

The zoning bylaw outlines numerous uses requiring a special permit in the Table of Use
Regulations. In addition, special permits are required for specific activities described throughout
the zoning bylaw. Tah -in the Appendix summarizes these activities and the entity
responsible for granting a special permit (note that it does not address the use requirements
covered in the Table of Use Regulations). To make it easier for applicants to understand the
activities that require a special permit, this table could be added to Section 9 of the zoning bylaw.

In addition, some activities that are fairly routine currently require a special permit, and could
instead be allowed by right, while retaining the other requirements in the bylaw (size, number,
placement of these signs). These include:

e Section 5.2.10.2. Nonaccessory signs: Directional signs located on private property
e Section 5.2.11.3. Canopy signs
Other activities require a special permit but should be prohibited:

e Section 5.4.2. Searchlights. The operation of laser shows or searchlights for advertising
purposes.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

5.3

5.31

Recommended change: Add table summarizing activities requiring a special permit to Section 9
of the zoning bylaw. Revise Section 5.2.10.2, Nonaccessory signs and Section 5.2.11.3. Canopy
signs, to remove the special permit requirement (allow by-right). Revise Section 5.4.2,
Searchlights, to prohibit this activity.

Nonconforming Uses and Structures

Alterations to nonconforming uses and structures

Section 3.3 of the zoning bylaw includes allowances for changes to nonconforming uses and
structures, including when a special permit or variance is required to change a nonconforming
use or structure. In general, a permit from the ZBA is required to change a nonconforming use or
structure, and a variance is required to increase or add a new nonconformity. For single and two-
family residential structures, changes can be made at the determination of the building inspector,
provided that the changes do not increase nonconformities.

Town Counsel recommended minor edits to Sections 3.3.2, 3.3.4, 3.3.5 to reflect court cases and
clarify language.

Recommended change: Modify section 3.3.2 to read as follows: “Nonconforming uses. The
Board of Appeals may award a special permit to change, alter or modify a nonconforming use
in accordance with this section only if it determines that such change or extension shall not
be substantially more detrimental than the existing nonconforming use to the neighborhood,
and provided that such change, alteration or modification is not different in kind, character or
degree. The following types of changes to nonconforming uses may be considered by the
Board of Appeals:

1. Change or substantial extension of the use;
2. Change from one nonconforming use to another, less detrimental, nonconforming use.”

Recommended change: Modify section 3.3.4 to read as follows: “Nonconforming structures;
variance required. (1) Except as provided in Subsection 3.3.5, below, the reconstruction,
extension or structural change of a nonconforming single or two-family residential structure
in such a manner as to create a new nonconformity shall require the issuance of a variance
from the Board of Appeals; and (2) The reconstruction extension or structural change of all
other structures in such a manner as to increase an existing nonconformity, or create a new
nonconformity shall require the issuance of a variance from the Board of Appeals, provided,
however, the extension of an exterior wall at or along the same nonconforming distance
within a required yard shall require only the issuance of a special permit from the Board of
Appeals.”

Recommended change: Modify section 3.3.5 to read as follows: “Nonconforming single and
two-family residential structures. Nonconforming single- and two-family residential structures
may be reconstructed, extended, altered, or structurally changed upon a determination by the
Building Inspector that such proposed reconstruction, extension, alteration, or change does
not increase the nonconforming nature of said structure. In the event that the Building
Inspector determines that the nonconforming nature of such structure would be increased by
the proposed reconstruction, extension, alteration, or change, the Board of Appeals may, by
special permit, allow such reconstruction, extension, alteration, or change where it determines
that the proposed modification will not be substantially more detrimental than the existing



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

53.2

54

5.4.1

5.5

5.5.1

nonconforming structure to the neighborhood, provided that a variance will be required for
all new non-conformities. The following circumstances may, at the Building Inspector’s
reasonable discretion, not be deemed to increase the nonconforming nature of said structure:

1. Alteration to a structure located on a lot with insufficient area which complies with all
current setback, yard, building coverage, and building height requirements,

2. Alteration to a structure located on a lot with insufficient frontage which complies
with all current setback, yard, building coverage, and building height requirements.

3. Alteration to a structure which encroaches upon one or more required yard or
setback areas, where the alteration will comply with all current setback, yard, building
coverage and building height requirements.”

Reconstruction after catastrophe

The zoning bylaw includes a process for reconstructing a nonconforming structure after a
catastrophe or demolition. Town Counsel recommended wording changes to this provision to
clarify that a variance will be required if a new non-conformity is proposed.

Recommended change: Modify section 3.3.7.3 to read as follows: “In the event that the
proposed reconstruction would (a) cause the structure to exceed the volume or area of the
original nonconforming structure or (b) exceed applicable requirements for yards, setback,
and/or height or (¢) cause the structure to be located other than on the original footprint, a
special permit shall be required from the Board of Appeals prior to such demolition, provided
however that a variance shall be required in the event that a new non-conformity is
proposed.”

Roles and Responsibilities

Affordable Housing Trust

Members of the Affordable Housing Trust suggested that the Trust could play a formal role in
the development review process by advising the Planning Board and ZBA on projects related to
multifamily housing. This could be similar to the role of the Industrial and Commercial Design
Review Committee in making advisory, non-binding recommendations to the ZBA, and would
codify current practice.

Recommended change: Add section 9.7 detailing the roles and responsibilities of the
Affordable Housing Trust in making non-binding, advisory recommendations to the ZBA on
multifamily housing or Flexible Development projects requiring a special permit or site plan
approval.

Other Administration and Procedures Changes

Minor wording changes

Town Counsel and other stakeholders recommended several minor wording changes to clarify
items related to administration and procedures.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Recommended change: Modify section 9.3.1 to read as follow: "Establishment. There shall be
a Board of Appeals under these bylaws which shall be appointed by the Select Board of
Selectmen. The Select Board may appoint two associate members to the Board of Appeals.”



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

6Miscellaneous

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

Definitions

Restaurants

There are currently four definitions in the zoning bylaw for restaurants, each with slightly
different use and parking requirements (restaurant, restaurant with entertainment, fast-food
restaurant, and drive through restaurant/retail establishment). These could be streamlined to
reduce confusion and duplication. In particular, the definition of “fast-food restaurant” could be
removed since fast-food restaurants are allowed in the same districts as conventional restaurants.

The other types of restaurants — restaurants with entertainment and drive through restaurants —
require a special permit from the ZBA, which makes sense given their potential impact. Therefore,
the zoning bylaw should retain separate definitions for restaurants with entertainment and drive-
throughs. In addition, the definition of restaurant in the zoning bylaw is overly specific, and
should be modified to align with the commonly understood definition of restaurants.

Recommended change: Remove “Restaurant, Fast-Food” from Section 10.1 (Definitions), as
well as the Table of Use Regulations and Table of Parking Requirements. Fast-food
restaurants will now have the same requirements as conventional restaurants.

Modify the definition of Restaurant to state: “A commercial establishment where food and
beverages are prepared, served, and consumed. Take-out and delivery are allowed.”

Outdated Information

Outdated sections
Two sections of the zoning code have expired and should be deleted:

e Section 6.8, Marijuana establishment temporary moratorium: This section expired in
2018.

e Section 7.4, Development Schedule: This section expired in 2015.

Recommended change: Delete Sections 6.8, Marijuana establishment temporary moratorium
and Section 7.4, Development Schedule in their entirety.



Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Appendix

Table 2: Activities Requiring a Special Permit (note: this table does not address the use requirements covered in
the Table of Use Regulations).

Zoning Bylaw Topic Activity Requiring a Special
Section Permit
3.3.2 Nonconforming uses Change a nonconforming
_ | | use.
3.3.3 Nonconforming structures Reconstruct, extend, alter,
or change a nonconforming
| _ | structure.
4.2.5 Business District dimensional A lot in the Business District
requirements which does not meet the

area or frontage
requirements of this Section
4.0 may apply for a special

_ _ | permit.

5.1.6 Off-street parking and loading Adjust any of the
requirements if such
adjustment will not be
substantially detrimental to
_ _ | safety.

5.2.2 Electric message boards May be used only on ground
signs and with the issuance
of a special permit.

5.2.9 Off-premises signs Prohibited except by special
_ _ | permit.
5.2.10.2 Nonaccessory signs Directional signs located on
private property by special
. _ | permit.
5.2.11.1 Large signs Sign areas larger than 96

square feet and signs in
excess of 15 feet above
_ | - ground level.

5.2.11.2 Roof and wall signs A multioccupant building
may be permitted to erect
multiple roof and wall signs
for each occupant; a building
may have wall or roof signs
on more than one side of a

_ building.

5.2.11.3 Canopy signs A premises shall be
permitted to have a canopy
sign subject to the issuance

| of a special permit.

5.2.13 Off-premises signs On private property if

granted a special permit.



5.3.9

5.4.2

6.2

6.3.3

' 6.3.4

Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Landscaping requirements

| Searchlights

' Earth removal

Driveways - maximum distance

' Driveways - grade

' Section 5.3 includes

landscaping requirements
for any nonresidential use
subject to a special permit or
site plan approval. 5.3.9
allows for a reduction in the
requirements by special

| permit. _
The operation of laser shows

or searchlights for
advertising purposes is
prohibited; provided
however, that same may be
authorized for a period of
not more than 14 days by

special permit.

Incidental earth removal
where such removal is
permitted as an accessory
use.

The distance of any driveway
measured from the street
line to the point where the
principal building is
proposed shall not exceed a
distance of 500 feet, unless
the Board of Appeals grants
a special permit after a
determination that said
driveway will provide safe
and reasanable access for
fire, police and emergency

 vehicles.®

The grade of each driveway
where it intersects with the
public way shall not exceed
6% on major streets, 9% on
secondary streets, or 9% on
minor streets for a distance
of 20 feet from the travel
surface of the public way,
unless the Board of Appeals
shall grant a special permit
after a determination that
said driveway will provide
safe and reasonable access

& This zoning audit includes a recommendation to remove the option of a special permit for this activity.

1



6.3.6

6.5

7.1

7.3

' 8.5

' 8.6

754

' Garage serving an ADU

Town of Middleton Comprehensive Zoning Review

Common driveways

' Wireless telecommunications
facilities
Multifamily or attached dwelling

' Flexible development

" Adult uses

Medical marijuana

for fire, police and
emergency vehicles.

Common driveways serving

not more than two lots may
be allowed on special

~ permit.

Special permit required.

" InR2 district, allowed by

special permit according to

~ requirements in this section,

Flexible development may
be authorized upon the
issuance of a special permit

by the Planning Board.

Adult uses require a special
permit from the Board of

 Appeals.

Registered marijuana
dispensary are allowed
pursuant to a special permit

' from the Board of Appeals.

The construction of a new
garage to serve an ADU shall
require a Special Permit
from the Board of Appeals.

12



Town of Middleton

Office of the Inspector of Buildings
195 North Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts 01949

978-777-2850

FAX 978-774-0718

www.townofmiddleton.org

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE

NEW CONSTRUCTION: The permit fees for all new construction, including additions, decks, porches and accessory

buildings are based on.

The latest RS Means Residential Cost Data will also be used to determine costs of construction when necessary.

Total Permit Fees are collected at issuance of Foundation Permit
All Building Costs and Fees Will Be Rounded Up
ALL OTHER BUILDING PERMITS
Alterations, Renovations, Remodeling, including Decks, Ramps, Screen Porches, Sheds, Etc.
$11.00 per thousand of construction cost

PERMIT TYPE FEES
Minimum Permit Fee $50.00-Residential
Swimming Pools, Tennis & Sports Courts $11.00 per thousand construction cost
DEMOLITION FEES
Residential (up to three stories) $100.00
MISCELLANEOUS PERMITS FEES
Chimneys, Solid Fuel Appliances $11.00 per thousand construction cost
New Construction HVAC/Sheet Metal- $125.00 per unit

Replacement HVAC No Sheet Metal

$65.00 per unit

Sheet Metal

$11.00 per thousand of cost of work

Re-inspection Fee $40.00 Per Trip Pre paid
Duplicate Permit or Certificate of Occupancy $40.00

Permit Renewal $100.00

Permit Takeover $40.00 (pertime)

Extension of Building Permit-(6 month-2x limit) | $50.00 (per time if construction is not started within 6 months)
Reissue of Revoked/Suspended Building Permit | $100.00 (per time)

Zoning Verification Letters ' $40.00

Temporary Residential Buildings (trailer-for use

during rebuilding of uninhabitable home) $100.00

Temporary Construction Trailer-6 month permit | $50.00

Fences for Pools Only $11.00 per thousand of cost of job
Tents-Residential $50.00

Occupancy Permit $50.00

Sprinkler Permit

$2.00 per thousand/construction cost




Town of Middleton

Office of the Inspector of Buildings
195 North Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts 01949
978-777-2850
FAX 978-774-0718
www.townofmiddleton.org

Table 110
Schedule for Periodic Inspection of Existing Buildings
(See Chapters 3: Use and Occupancy Classification and 4: Special Detailed Reguirements Based on Use and Occupancy for
complete descriptions of use groups.)

Use Use Group Certification Additional
Use Group .. . Fee
Group Description Period Notes
Al Movie theaters or theaters for >400 occupant load One year $80.00
performing acts (stage and scenery) <400 occupant load One year $150.00
A2 Restaurants, Night Clubs or similar >400 occupant load! One year $80.00 Note A
uses <400 occupant load! One vear $150.00 Note A
A3 |t pcoaf wlgion womkip, | ZADoscupmtond | Oneyer
. " i <400 occupant load One year $150.00
recreational centers, terminals etc.
A-4 Low density recreation and similar uses One year $80.00
A Special amusement building or portions thereof One year ) $200.00
E Educational, day care One year $80.00
I-1 Group home One year One year

Residents incapable of self-preservation - hospitals, nursing

- home, menta] hospitals, certain day care facilities s $150.00 iate B
1-3 Residents restrained — prisons, jails, detention centers, efc. One year $150.00 Note B
1-4 Adult and/or child day care facilities One vear $80.00
R-1 Hotels, motels, boarding houses, etc. One vear $100.00 Note C
R-1 Detoxification facilities One year $100.00 Note C
R-2 Multi-family Two year $100.00 Note D
R-2 Dormitories and R-2 Congregate Living One year $100.00 Note D
R-2 Summer Camps for children One vear $80.00 Note E
R-3 Residential facilities licensed by DDS or DMH One year $100.00
R-4 Residential care/assisted living facilities (<16 persons) One vear $100.00
Facilities licensed by the Alcohol Beverage Control One year! as per
Any Commission where alcoholic beverages are served and M.G.L. c. 10 § 74 $80.00 Note A
consumed T
Any Housgmuseums (see Chapter 34: Existing Structures for One year $80.00
definitions
Any Fire escapes, etc. per Chapter 10: Means of Egress Five years $80.00
Notes:

1. Certificates of inspection for establishments mmtending to sell alcoholic beverages to be consumed on the
premises shall be Governed by M.G.L. ¢ 10 § 74 and the inspection schedule in section 110.7. The building
official may issue a temporary inspection certificate, once co-signed by the building official and by the head of
the fire department, effective to a date certain for the establishment.

General Note: It is the responsibility of the building “owner” as defined in Chapter 2: Definitions. to meet the inspection
requirements in this table for continued use and occupancy. The maximum certification period specified in the table is
intended to provide administrative flexibility. For uses allowing more than one year maximum certification period, the
permit may determine the certificate validity term. For example, an R-2 building could be certified for one, two, three, four
or five years.




MAY 12,2026 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING

PRELIMINARY LIST
Art | Page
# B | #
Current & Prior Year Financial Articles
1. Hear Committee Reports I.
2. | Pay Bills of Prior Fiscal Years [
3. Snow and Ice Deficit
' 4. | Retroactive pay for Library Collective Bargaining Agreement
5. Current year use of stabilization for MMC to reduce borrowing
6. Current vear use of Free Cash for MMC to reduce borrowing
FY2027 Financial Articles
7. Approve FY2027 Compensation for Elected Officials
8. FY2027 Omnibus Budget
| 9. FY2027 Community Preservation Budget - Debt Service, Projects, Expenses
10. | FY2027 Community Preservation Budget - New Projects
11. | Authorize FY2027 Revolving Fund Spending Limits
12. | FY2027 South Essex Sewerage District Enterprise Budget
13. | FY2027 Water Enterprise Budget
14. | Accept Sum from Middleton Electric Light Department (MELD)
15. | Transfers to Reserve Accounts
16. | FY2027 Capital Budget
17. | Masconomet Regional Capital Request
18. | MSBA Language re: Roof/HVAC
19. | Fuller Meadow Roof Construction Debt Capital Request
Citizen Petitions, Bylaw Adoptions, & Real Property
20. | Leitner Way
21. | WUMP Revolving Fund — create and set limit — this could be one or two
articles
22. | Comprehensive Zoning
23. | Police Department Retirement Age
24. | Field Use revolving Fund










LOnLSIg
3OVHIM3S

X353 HLNOS FHL
NEHLIM NOLIWIANS
40 NMOL SHI NI
$730uVd J40 VUV

FLVAIXOQHdDY »‘ -

SL13SNHOVSSYW

NO131ddin

40
VN LIIULS

anN3oal







UL BE
i 3} cc#>cm_._mcmm_u e J0j Juswieal] Jo1emalsem | asas

.........

AR B

P .
..........

MBI |eliay Allj1oe4 1uswleal] 191BMILSBAN



188pNnQ PasSSassY 1810 | g 199 1dWIBXI-UON Pue 10LIaXT 1810 ] wipm aNUBASY 5587 1 O71id '3 ‘SIUBLLISSASSY 188PNE W0 110w

HY3A WOSId
5102

(9202 Ad 01 0002 Ad4) Al0lsiH 198png passassy 1011SIg 98eIamMag X8ss] YInog

08
000°000°5$
000'000°01$
000'000°ST$
000°'000°0C$
000°000°52$
000°000°0€$

000°000°SE$




0667299 = 108png passassy [€101 9707 Ad

%I
FBN/qe/3u3

t
sasuadx3z

jende) [enuuy

STUNLIANIIX3 4313D5ANG 920T Ad
JO1Y1SIA IDVHIMIS X3SST HLNOS




den 198png Z/T 2 UORISOUOld wmmes 128PNG jENUUY U] jelide)) mmmm 192 1dWwaxg uoN mamm 107id PUe 183png Suesad) 1duiax] uoN s

0€0¢ 620c 8¢02 £20¢ 9z20¢ G202 veoe gcoe 2202 1c0e 0zgoe 6102 8102

000°000°GT

000°00G6°L1

000°000°0¢2

000°005°CC

000'000'52

000°00S'LC

mw . L

1 d3.10310yd I 000°000°0€

(SIW3LI139aNg 1dIW3IX3 3ANTONI LON S304a)
NOILD3rodd 139aN4g 10141S1a




1M Su .._a_j._ - ‘|leAOwaJ wnds pue ‘Ajljiqes|nas |
dduewoad jueld anosdw| _ 23pn|s ‘suayue aziwndo
10qJeH AjJaAag ayl yieauaq ‘'sadid mau
adid Sui8e |eoin1uo 9oe|day | omi yim adid pjo JeaA-g¢ aoe|day
*'S)s0J |esodsip |
wus_vm: pue Ajjiqer|aa anosdw 7 “Juawdinba p|o JeaA-Qg aoe|doy _
sjijouag uondiinsag

uolezjwiydQ ssa20.4d Arepuodag
JuswWdde|day ulewadlo Ajuanag

1uawdinb3j 8uissadtoid sjenpisay
199f044 ajdwex3




(ST-TT SJA) € dnoag Ajiond
T-9 SJA) T dnoup Ayaond
(G-T s4A) T dnouo Ayuiond
jJuswaSeuepy weidoud

51507 [eude) | = ~dnoup Aond




~

. uojsog
§ SSEIAIN



















LAW OFFICES

DONOVAN & DONOVAN
29 ELM STREET
DANVERS, MASSACHUSETTS 01923

(508) 774-6062

DANIEL j. DONOVAN
MARSHA DONOQVAN

June 20, 1991

Mr. Ira Singer,

Town Administrator
Town Hall

Middleton, MA 01949

Re: Almira J. Richardson Trust
Dear Ira:

Enclosed is above trust with Mr. Richardson's
signature notarized.

Very truly yours,
Marsha Domnovan

MD:.GMC
Enclosure




ALMIRA J. RICHARDSON TRUST

This Indenture of Trust is  made this24 day of QM 1991, by
Edward J. Richardson of Middleton, Massachusstts, Dono# and The Board of

Selectmen of the Town of Middleton, Massachusetts, as Trustees, or in the
alternative, the Scholarship Committee, as they are so designated by the-
Selectmen of the Town of Middleton. The Donor and the Trustees agree as follows:

ARTICLE |. NAME OF TRUST. This trust shall be known as the ALMIRA J,
RICHARDSON TRUST. :

ARTICLE Il. TRUST CORPUS; FUNDING. The Trustees agree with the Donor that
they will hold all property now or later transtarred by any person fo them as
Trustee In accordance with the terms and provisions of this indenture.

ARTICLE IIl. THE TRUST. The property directed to be held under this Article
shall be held in trust, administered and paid as follows:

(1) Beneficiarles. The beneficiarigs of this trust shall be deserving students,
who are residents of Middleton, furthering their education in the nursing or
medical field or an ailled occupation, and shall be selected at the sole discretion of
the Trustees. . :

(3) Payment and Distributions During Administration. During trust
administration, the Trustees shall make payments annually of Interest generated

from the trust for the benefit of the student. .
Within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year, unpaid trust Income

“ shall be added to trust principal.
ARTICLE IV, ADDITIONAL DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS.

Section A. Principal Distribution. :

The power granted to the Trustees to distribute principal is expressly
intended to authorize the Trustees to distribute all of the principal of the trust
upon termination of the Trust.

Section B, Payments of Debts and Taxes.
The Trustees are authorized to make payment of debts, taxes and expenses

Including expenses of an accountant.

Section C. Termination of Trust by Trustees. The Trustees are granted the power
to terminate the trust In part or in whole, and to distribute all of the trust assets
for any one or more of the followlng reason to be determined by the Trustses In
their sole discretion and distribute in accordance with Articte Il

(a) because it is no longer economical to administer the frust assets and

trust;
(b)  The Donor shall not have the authority to terminate the Trust.




ARTICLE V. DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall be applled in
interpreting this Indenture:

(1) The term "trust property,” unless otherwise characterized or defined for
a specific purpose, shall mean the remaining balance, from time to time, of all of
the property held In trust under this Instrumentregardless of whather such
balance includes property which was originally trust principal, proceeds of
original trust principal, or undistributed income. .

(2)  Where necessary for the proper meaning to be given to any termi used in
this Indenture, words denoting ons gender shall include the other gender, the
singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the singular.:

ARTICLE VI. TRUSTEES' POWERS. Except to the extent specifically limited by
other provisions of this Instrument, the Trustees, in addition to and not in
fimitation of common law and statutory powers, shall have and may exercisa the
following powers, without resort to, or order, -or license of any court:

(1) to hold any asset of the trust In bearer form or In the name of 4 nominee,
without any indication of fiduciary capacly; and 1o deposit securities in a
securities depository within or outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts;
(2) to make distributions in cash or In kind {including non-pro rata
distrlbutions and distributions of undivided interests In property), at such
values as my Trustee shall determine and without the necessity of equalizing the
cost basis of assets distributed to each beneficiary; ‘

(3) when more than one Trustee is serving, to delegate fiduciary powsrs to a
single Trustee for any period.

ARTICLE VII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. The following provisions shall apply to eac:h
trust established by this indenture: :

. (1)  Limitation on Trustee' Liability. No Trustee shall be held personally
liable by reason of any action taken, suffered or omitted In good faith.
(2) Trustee Bonds. No bond or surety shall be required of any otriginal or
successor Trustee.
(3) Liabllily for Actions of Prior Trustea. No Trustee shall be responsible
for the acts or omissions of another Trustes. Each additional or sticcessor
Trustee shall not be liable for any acts or omissions of any Trustee prior to the
time he or she became a Trustee.
(4) Powers of Successor Trustee. The incumbent Trustee shall have all of the
title, powers and discretion granted to the original Trustee, without court order
or act of transfer.
(5) Rights and Obligations of Third Parties. If any Trustee discloses fiduciary
capacity in dealing with any person, then that person shall have no claim against
the Trustee as individuals, but only- against the trust property. Anyone may rely
on any statements of facts cerlified to by any Trustee. Whenever the Trustees act
pursuant to authority contained In this indenture or under law, third parties may
rely on such acts without inquiry. No one dealing with the Trustee need see to the
application of any money paid or property transferred to or upon the order of any
Trustee.




(6) Successor Trustee, Resignation, Limitation. Any member of the Board of
- Trustees may Tesign as Trustee at any time by written instrument delivered to
the Selectmen who shall appoint a successor Trustee. A successor Trustee shall
make written acceptance of office.

(7)  Governing Law. The validity and effect of this instrument and the
administration of the trust created by It shall be determined by the laws of
Massachusetls. ;

(8) Coples. A copy of this Instrument and of the writings, if any, attached to
it, cerlified by a notary public, or a corrected copy of this instrument
purporiing to Incorporaie all textual amendments to date. and certified by a
notary public, may be relied on.by any person as fully as the original documents
themselves: and any certificate by anyone whom such original documents or such
certifled coples Indicate to be a Trustee shall be evidence of thé facts thereln
stated, Including statements as o the appointment and status as Trustee of the
person executing the certificate, and any person dealing with such apparent
Trustee may rely on any such certificate dated not more than three months before

presentation.

in witness whereof, the parties have sel their hands on the day, month and year

set out above. _

Edward J. Richardson, Donor

C //gf’)um: ”L;hu.r'

" s

Trustee _ LA
. b

T usteq

Commenwealth of Massachuselts

County of Essex Date: g@/f/

Personally appeared above-named, Edward J. Richardson,and
acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed, before me

| ,4%@% ot O bt

Notary Public /
My commission expires: )ﬂp%// 1595




